
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts 

MEETING AGENDA 

March 22, 2021 – 6:00 PM 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/99722440245 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-6833 and enter Meeting ID: 997 2244 0245 
Commission Secretary:  Josh Jacobs (jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info; 510-225-8035) 

1. Roll Call.
2. Public Comment on non-agenda items.
3. Approval of Minutes from February 3, 2021. [Attachment 1].

Updates/Action Items: 
4. Agenda Approval.
5. Chair and Vice Chair Elections.
6. Schedule Additional Meetings for April, 2021 and May, 2021 to Discuss, and Make

Recommendations for Measure P Allocations.
7. Request to Council for Two Additional Meetings to Discuss, and Make

Recommendations for, Measure P Allocations.
8. Discussion on monies needed to sustain current programs and discussion on

whether monies allocated in the last budget have been committed, identifying those
programs for which monies were not used either because the program was not
implemented or another source of funding, such as FEMA, was identified.

9. Discussion on allocation of Measure P funds for Emergency Medical Transport for
Persons experiencing a Mental Health Crisis (‘5150 Response & Transport’)

10. Discussion on establishing a flex fund reserve, within the budget, to address critical
needs that develop between budget cycles.

11. Discussion on whether last year's funding allocations can now be met by another
source of projected funding for 2021-2022, the nature of those sources and the
amount of monies projected from other sources.

12. Discussion on unmet needs from last year's Measure P funding.
13. Discussion on where monies could be otherwise secured to fund 1367 University

Avenue Step-Up Housing.
14. Discussion on possible consolidation of Homeless Services Panel of Experts and

Homeless Commission.
15. Develop work plan to be conducted following budgetary allocations including

possible program site visits.
16. Adjourn.

Attachments: 
1. Minutes from regular meeting of February 3, 2021.
2. Presentation by Staff on periodic reporting [Attachment 2]

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx
https://zoom.us/j/99722440245
mailto:jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info


Page 2 of 4 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
March 22, 2021 
 

3. Recommendations from Work Plan Subcommittee [Attachment 3] 
4. Unfunded Liability Obligations and Unfunded Infrastructure Needs [Attachment 4] 
5. Recommendations for Allocation of FY19/20 Measure P Funds [Attachment 5] 

 
 

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 
17, 2020, this meeting of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through 

teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety of 

the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not 
be a physical meeting location available. 

 
If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop-down menu 
and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use 
the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the946 9829 9750. If you wish to comment during 
the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the 

Chair. 
 

Correspondence and Notice of Decision Requests:  
 
Deadlines for Receipt: 
A) Supplemental Materials must be received by 5 PM the day before the meeting.  
B) Supplemental Communications must be received no later than noon the day of the meeting. 
 
Procedures for Distribution: 
A) Staff will compile all Supplemental Materials and Supplemental Communications received by 
the deadlines above into a Supplemental Packet, and will print 15 copies of this packet for the 
Commission meeting.  
B) For any Supplemental Material or Communication from a Commissioner received after these 
deadlines, it is the Commissioner’s responsibility to ensure that 15 printed copies are available 
at the meeting. Commissioners will not be reimbursed for any printing or materials expenses. 
C) Staff will neither print nor distribute Supplemental Communications or Materials for 
subcommittee meetings.  
 
Procedures for Consideration:  
A) The Commission must make a successful motion to accept and receive all Supplemental 
Materials and Communications into the record. This includes the Supplemental Packet compiled 
by staff.  
 
B) Each additional Supplemental Material or Communication received by or before the meeting 
that is not included in the Supplemental packet (i.e., those items received after the respective 
deadlines above) must be individually voted upon to be considered by the full Commission.  
 
C) Supplemental Materials subject to a Commission vote that are not accepted by motion of the 
Commission, or for which there are not at least 15 paper copies (9 for each Commission seat, 
one for staff records, and 5 for the public) available by the scheduled start of the meeting, may 
not be considered by the Commission.  
 
*Supplemental Materials are defined as any items authored by one or more Commissioners, 
pertaining to an agenda item but available after the agenda and packet for the meeting has 



Page 3 of 4 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
March 22, 2021 
 
been distributed, on which the Commission is asked to take vote at the meeting. This includes 
any letter to Council, proposed Council report, or other correspondence on behalf of the 
Commission for which a full vote of the Commission is required. 
 
**Supplemental Communications are defined as written emails or letters from members of the 
public or from one or more Commissioners, the intended audience of which is the full 
Commission. Supplemental Communications cannot be acted upon by the Commission, and 
they may or may not pertain to agenda items. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at Health, Housing & Community Services 
Department located at 2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor.  
 
Public Comment Policy:  
Members of the public may speak on any items on the Agenda and items not on the Agenda 
during the initial Public Comment period. Members of the public may not speak more than once 
on any given item. The Chair may limit public comments to 3 minutes or less. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at Health, Housing & Community Services 
Department located at 2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor.   
 
 
COMMUNITY ACCESS INFORMATION  
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please 
contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6342 (V) or 981-6345 (TDD) at least 3 business 
days before the meeting date.  Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 
  
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will 
become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  
Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not 
required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will 
become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact 
information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in 
person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee.  If you do not want your 
contact information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your 
communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee 
for further information.  The Health, Housing & Community Services Department does not take a 
position as to the content.  Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees 
are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible 
through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other 
contact information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, 
commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail 
address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications 
via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or 
committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do 
not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant 
board, commission or committee for further information.  The Health, Housing & Community 
Services Department does not take a position as to the content.   
 



Page 4 of 4 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
March 22, 2021 
 

ADA Disclaimer “This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible 
location. To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in 
the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the 
Disability Services Specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least 
three business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing 
scented products to this meeting.” 



 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx  

MEETING MINUTES  
February 3, 2021 

1. Roll Call: 7:01 PM 

Present:  Gale, Bookstein, Jordan (absent until 7:12), Garlin, Mulligan, Metz, 
Sherman, Trotz. 

Absent:  None.  
Staff:  Carnegie, Lee, Buddenhagen, White, Jacobs. 
Council:  McCormick. 
Public: 2 

2. Comments from the Public:  None. 
 
Update/Action Items 
3. Approval of Minutes from October 7, 2020. 

 
Action: M/S/C Metz/Sherman to approve the minutes of October 7, 2020 as written.  
 
Vote:   Ayes:  Gale, Garlin, Mulligan, Metz, Sherman, Trotz. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: Bookstein. Absent: Jordan. 

 
4. Agenda Approval.  

 
Action: M/S/C Gale/Garlin to approve the agenda as written.  

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Gale, Bookstein, Garlin, Mulligan, Metz, Sherman, Trotz. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jordan. 

 
5. Update from Chair and Staff on City business related to homelessness. 
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
 
6. Staff presentation and discussion of periodic reports and Measure P budget. 

 
Discussion; no action taken. 

 
7. Chair and Vice Chair Elections.  

 
Action: M/S/C Mulligan/Bookstein to extend meeting by ten minutes. 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Homeless Services Panel of Experts - Minutes 
10-7-20

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5435    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info |

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx 

Vote:   Ayes:  Gale, Bookstein, Jordan, Garlin, Mulligan, Metz, Sherman, Trotz.
      Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: 

Meeting adjourned at 9:09 PM. 

Minutes Approved on: _________________________ 

  Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary:  

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx




 

 





 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 







 



 



 





 



 





1 

August 25, 2020 
Notes from 9/29 Meeting with City in Red 

To: Member of the Homelessness Services Panel of Experts 

From:  Work Plan Subcommittee 

Re: For Discussion: Proposals for future Panel work to be more effective and align with the 
Ordinance 

The work plan committee met twice in August to discuss future plans for the Panel and how to 
make the work more relevant and impactful, in alignment with the Measure P Ordinance 
requirements and vision for the Panel1. In addition, the chair consulted with Mayor Arreguin 
and Vice-Mayor Hahn about strategies to make the Panel more effective and able to serve the 
purposes envisioned in the Ordinance. 

The committee’s discussions focused on four related, but separate, areas for attention- all with 
the express intention of meeting the Panel’s objectives as defined in the measure- “make 
recommendations on how to and what extent the City should establish and/or fund programs 
to end or prevent homelessness in Berkeley and provide humane services and support.” 

1. Adopting a two-year cycle meeting schedule more closely aligned to the City
Council budget process and developing, and

2. Adopting a set of supporting by-laws that regularize the Panels’ work and
approach around fulfilling the role in the Ordinance (as mandated).

3. Ensuring we, and the public, have access to regular, detailed information about
revenues,  expenditures, and funded programs.

4. Recognizing that our current membership is not reflective of homelessness in
Berkeley from either a lived experience or a race/equity perspective and
identifying ways that this can be addressed, acknowledging the parameters of
both the Ordinance and the regulations regarding the seating of public bodies like
ours.

1. Adopt new schedule aligned with two-year budget cycle
Our panel was seated in May 2019 after most decisions for the 2020-21 budget cycle had been 
made.  Accurate information was not available to us in the fall of 2019 after we convened about 

1 For reference, here is the text of Measure P, as approved by the voters: “Shall ordinance raising funds for general 
municipal purposes such as navigation centers, mental health support, rehousing and other services for the 
homeless, including homeless seniors and youth; increasing the real property transfer tax for ten years from 1.5% 
to 2.5% for property sales and transfers over $1,500,000, adjusted annually to capture the top approximately 33% 
of transfers; generating an estimated $6,000,000 - $8,000,000 annually; and establishing Homeless Services Panel 
of Experts to recommend homeless services, be adopted?” 



2 
 

the amount of Measure P funds available to allocate, and our report was needed in an unusual 
time frame. 
 
Moving forward, we would like the work of the Panel of Experts to align with the bi-annual 
budget cycle of the City, to ensure that our observations are additive to the conversation at 
appropriate times, to better serve City Council and the public and to ensure that City staff time 
is respected (and not just used to facilitate meetings for the sake of having meetings).  
 
This would mean likely meeting more intensively every other year in the January/February to 
April/May period (beginning in 2021) and then perhaps meeting quarterly during the rest of the 
two-year cycle to provide oversight of the use of Measure P and other homeless funds and to 
prepare our annual reports.  
 
Example Schedule (to be refined): 
 

Panel Meeting Date Topics/link to budget 
January, 2021 One or two meetings  to review current situation, 

and start working, depending on when reports are 
available 

February 2021 

March, 2021 Likely two meetings to develop recommendations 
April, 2021 Budget Recommendations due to the Board, and 

Annual public report 
June, 2021 Final meeting of Panel if needed for update on 

budget process and potentially send letter re 
budget deliberations; Council adopts Budget 

October, 2021 Update/Officer elections (if still on one year 
election cycle) 

March, 2022 Review off-budget cycle year report from staff 
April 2022 Publish off-year cycle annual report 
June, 2021 Final meeting of Panel if needed for update on 

budget process and potentially send letter re 
budget deliberations; Council adopts Budget 

October, 2022 Update/Officer elections for new budget cycle  
 

2. Adopting By-laws 
The ordinance calls for us to adopt by-laws.  By having specific by-laws we can differ from some 
of the requirements for Commissions covered in the Commissioner’s handbook, including 
potentially: 

• The meeting frequency and schedule 
• the requirement to adopt an annual work plan (the subcommittee would recommend 

following a bi-annual plan laid out in our by-laws which could include a standard report 
format, for example), 

•  officer term limits and roles  



3 
 

• Treatment of absences and temporary appointments (for example to not allow 
temporary appointments).  

• Quorum requirements for taking votes (for example, include a super majority of those 
present to allow a vote when needed, rather than only a majority of those appointed) 

 
Before drafting by-laws for consideration we want to explore with the Panel the interest in 
moving to a two-year schedule (above) and we want to discuss the reporting needs of the Panel 
and the timing for getting such reports with Council and staff before finalizing a schedule and 
approach (below). 
 
3.  Format for Periodic Reports 
 
Our charge is to publish a report for the voters that includes “information, if available, on the 
impact of funded programs on the residents of the City” and “recommendations to the Council 
on how to allocate the City’s general funds to fund homeless services program in Berkeley.”  
 
We are unable to fulfill this legislated function without regular, periodic and predictable reports 
from the City on the funds received, funds committed and expended, and the impact of those 
investments.  
 
The committee discussed at length the type of content and frequency of reports that would 
allow us to do this work. We are recommending that we request of the City reports at least 
semi-annually on financial and outcome information and at least annually on consumer 
experience and on trends and gaps.  
 
The timing of these reports needs to coincide with our need to make budget recommendations 
and report to voters. For example, we could ask for a report in February for July- December of 
the current fiscal year; and in September for a report on the entire previous fiscal year.  This 
timing can be negotiated with staff but must be able to support our need to report and be 
consistent from year to year. 

Our hope is that establishing regular reports will put the Panel, the City Council, and the City 
Staff in better positions to have productive explorations together. (The members of the 
subcommittee have also been in the position of having to pull together reports on the Staff 
side, and it is our desire to have a budget process aligned, functional reporting format so that 
City Staff will have time to pull together the necessary information and not be in situation 
where they repeatedly get asked for information on relatively short notice, or asked for 
information that isn’t possible to synthesize in certain ways.) 

  



4 
 

Potential report content: 
 
Desire to fulfil our responsibility and be kind to everyone – dialogue with staff about how we 
can do this. Make it so we get used to reviewing a standard format and  template. 
  
A. Financial – (at least 2x per year) 

1. How much P money was collected in the previous period, year to date, and overall 
2. How much Measure  P was encumbered in the last period, year to date, and the 

variance between what has been collected and encumbered overall 

What is the cycle for allocating P funds? Still not aligned Panel, Council, Staff on how this goes 
forward – and in a budget crisis. Is there a trigger amount? Should a certain amount accumulate 
to allocate? 

Revenue reports – come in quarterly. 

Plan how look at it holistically and timing wise – first City budget meeting on the 8th.  

3. What other sources (fed, state, pandemic, other) for homelessness have been received 
or are anticipated 

4. Information broken down by funding area (for all funding sources): outreach, health 
services, interim housing, and long-term housing that includes: 

o Overall budget 
o Status of contracts w/in each activities – have contracts been executed 
o Expenditures by activity area 
o Written narrative explaining any circumstances that have prevented funding 

from getting to contractors 

Time line and fiscal calendar – some things are not annual – e.g. PH is a long term commitment 
– will need a longer view. 

Community contracts are now based on every four years.  HSPOE process could bump up 
against the Homeless Commission process which makes recommendations on other sources. 
Would be nice to rationalize and align.   

But isn’t P also intended to fill gaps and add to the system.  What’s the right time frame? 

 

B. Programs/Outcomes (at least 2x a year and possibly quarterly once in place and able to be 
produced)   
1. Target numbers served (through contracts) and how many people were served (overall 

and in each program type) including demographics and population type 
2. What kind of outcomes were achieved in the period? 



5 
 

o # of people sheltered – help define what that means – how many people were 
sheltered in Berkeley in the time frame; how many people got into shelter from 
unsheltered (is that the same??) 

o # of people housed – just those exiting  into PSH or RRH? Or all destinations 
o # of people outreached to (difficult to get) 
o # of people returning to homelessness? 

Dovetails with HCS goals to get information out. Been talking about what can pull together – 
easiest to do is data in the HMIS system (not all agencies enter data.) 

Staff should present – these are things we can get readily, others can’t get readily. 

Panel needs to see the whole system, not just the P funded pieces. But need to know where the 
P-funded pieces are specifically.  

Staff need some time to get this and sure that gathering data.  

C. Other Needs and Trends (a least 2x a year, with particular emphasis during budget planning) 
1. What is happening in terms of homelessness (what do you see, what is critical, 

changing, emerging?) 
2. Where are the key gaps City staff identify? 
3. What else you want us to know? 

 
D. Report on participant consumer experience (annually) 

Our funding recommendations adopted by Council included putting a small amount of Measure 
P funds into training and evaluation. Our recommendation on evaluation specified that the 
funding should be used to ensure that participant/consumer voices are systematically gathered 
and considered in reviewing performance.  

From 9/2 MEETING:  

Staff response: Good plan, needs bandwidth and coordination with other departments 

Get real about what the barriers are, be able to communicate back to the Council 

Get to the place where we are used to reading the reports and can reduce the level of 
questions 

Next steps: meet with City  

Action 

1. Allow a week for comments from members on the proposal 
2. Subcommittee regroup if necessary 
3. Reach out to staff for meeting, including with the new homeless services coordinator, 

staff and City manager’s office and mayor’s office 
4. Proceed with developing by laws, report templates, template and new schedule 



6 
 

 

4.  Membership 

This body briefly discussed at our July meeting that our Panel has limited participation from 
people with lived experience at this time and does not reflect the racial/ethnic and income 
group makeup of people who experience homelessness in Berkeley.  The committee would like 
to explore methods for achieving a more balanced and representative group that includes 
people with lived experience and better reflects the racial makeup of the homeless population 
if possible.   
 
Potential methods we would like to explore (we do not know what the potential for all these 
are yet): 

• Identify a number of dedicated seats (e.g. 1/3 with lived experience or from 
communities over represented in homelessness) 

• Expand the panel and add some dedicated at-large members 
• Propose the panel be composed through a slate process (this probably isn’t possible 

with the current ordinance) 
• No change, request Council members consider in their appointments and/or do 

recruitment 

 



11

03



12



13



14



FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031
Misc. 35.87 39.19 41.94 44.26 47.51 48.61 51.41 53.35 55.15 57.78 60.68
Police 16.67 17.99 19.13 20.15 21.36 22.48 23.55 24.46 25.26 26.37 27.52
Fire 9.47 10.06 10.80 11.36 12.15 12.81 13.48 14.00 14.43 15.11 15.85
Total 62.00 67.24 71.87 75.77 81.02 83.90 88.44 91.81 94.84 99.26 104.05
FY 2021 and FY 2022 are based on amounts provided by CalPERS.
FY 2023 through FY 2031 amounts are based on actuary's projections.
Rates used reflect current MOU agreements: Miscellaneous includes the 8% employee share paid 
by the City on behalf of the employee as well as the negotiatied employee's contribution to the 
employer rate.

Future Payments to California Public Employees Retirement System All Plans (dollars in millions)

15



Fund Name Valuation Date Actuarial Source Estimated Liablity Plan Assets
Unfunded 

Liability
% 

Funded
 Miscellaneous 6/30/2019 CalPERS 1,095.0$                766.8$       328.20$  70.0%

 Police 6/30/2019 CalPERS 438.9$                  268.0$       170.90$  61.1%
 Fire 6/30/2019 CalPERS 286.5$                  203.5$       83.00$     71.0%

California Public Employees Retirement System Funded Status

16



17



18



19



Police Employee 
Retiree Income Benefit 
Plan (closed) 

6/30/2020  $               79.95  $              5.83  $               74.12  $                       -    $                  2.05 7.29% 149

Police Employees 
Retiree Health 
Premium Assistance 
Plan (new) 

7/1/2019  $               40.43  $              2.49  $               37.94  $                  4.43  $                  0.40 6.16% 189

Fire Employees Retiree 
Health Plan 

7/1/2019  $               25.83  $            11.31  $               14.52  $                  2.16  $                  0.76 43.79% 220

Retiree Health 
Premium Assistance 
Plans (Non-Safety 
Members) *

7/1/2019  $               68.46  $            27.81  $               40.65  $                  5.53  $                  2.00 40.62% 1656

Safety Members 
Pension Fund

6/30/2020  $                  1.86  $              0.10  $                 1.76  $                       -    $                  0.57 5.38% 8

 $             216.53  $            47.54  $             168.99  $               12.12  $                  5.78 21.96% 2222
*Actual contribution does not include interest income 

Retiree Medical Plan Actuarial Data
(dollars in milllions)

Plan 
Measurement 

Date 

Actuarial 
Estimated 
Liabilities Plan Assets 

Net Pension 
Liability 

Actuarially 
Determined 
Contribution 

(ADC) 
Actual 

Contribution * % Funded 
Total Plan 
Members

20



21



Zero COLA
FY 2021 

Adopted FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 FY 2031
Total Payroll 174.6$    174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 174.9$ 
Total Benefits 104.3$    130.3$ 141.8$ 149.1$ 158.1$ 165.2$ 174.5$ 183.2$ 192.4$ 203.7$ 216.1$ 
Fringe Rate 60% 74% 81% 85% 90% 94% 100% 105% 110% 116% 124%
Total 
Personnel 
Costs

278.9$    305.2$ 316.7$ 324.0$ 333.0$ 340.1$ 349.4$ 358.1$ 367.3$ 378.6$ 391.0$ 

Citywide Total Personnel Costs and Fringe Rate Over Time with Zero COLAS

22



Final 
FY 2020 
BONDS

Maturity TAX Rate

2015

2018
TOTAL $379,700,000 $217,700,000 $162,000,000 $142,905,000 0.0540%

Outstanding 
Principle Balance 
as of 6-30-2020

Bond issued  
Amount

Unissued 
Amount

Authorization 
Year

Bond 
Authorization

Authorization 
Amount

23



o

24



25



Funding Source Annual Funding
Parks Tax Fund $1,000,000
Capital Improvement Fund $400,000
Marina Fund $350,000
Camps Fund9 $0
Total Funding Available $1,750,000

Needed Improvements Cost Estimate
Resident Camps $5,910,000
Waterfront $113,167,000
Pools $11,750,000
Park Buildings/Facilities $32,960,000
Parks (General) $9,900,000
Parks (Specific) $38,902,000
Park Restrooms $4,450,000
Total $217,039,000

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY2019
($ in millions)

Liability $864 $874 $902 $983 $1,016 $1,072
Net Position   655   656   641   696      736      767
Net Liability   209   218   261   287      280      305
Funded Ratio   76%   75%   71%   71%      72%      71%

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
($ in millions)

Liability $241 $240 $247 $267 $273 $284
Net Position   186   182   177   183   197   203
Net Liability     55     58     70     78     76     80
Funded Ratio   77%   76%   72%    69%     72%    72%

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
($ in millions)

Liability $357 $362 $372 $405 $417 $430
Net Position   233   232   226   245   258   268
Net Liability   124   130   146   160   159   162
Funded Ratio   65%    64%    61%    61%    62%    62%

38



FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
($ in millions)

Liability $62 $59 $66 $90
Net Position   24   25   28   29
Net Liability   38   34   37   61
Funded Ratio   39%   42%   43%   33%

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
($ in millions)

Liability $28 $27 $31 $33
Net Position   10   10   11   12
Net Liability   18   17   20   21
Funded Ratio   36%   37%   37%   36%

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
($ in millions)

Liability $47 $43 $49 $60
Net Position   46   42   46   57
Net Liability     1     1     3     3
Funded Ratio   4%   4%   5%   4%

39



40



41



FY 2021 
Projected FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

GF Revenues 
Baseline 195.9 186.5 192.1 197.0 201.9 206.6 211.5 215.2 219.5 221.1

General Fund Revenues Projections

42



43



FY 2021 
Adopted

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

GF Revenues 
Baseline 188.35$   186.50$    192.10$     197.00$       201.90$   206.60$   211.50$    215.20$   219.50$   221.10$   
GF Expenditures  - 
Zero COLA 187.04$   209.87$    215.10$     220.14$       225.18$   231.01$   236.85$    243.10$   248.94$   255.26$   
Surplus/(Deficit) 1.30$       (23.37)$     (23.00)$      (23.14)$        (23.28)$    (24.41)$    (25.35)$     (27.90)$    (29.44)$    (34.16)$    

General Fund Revenues v.s. Expenditures - Demonstrative Comparison

44



45



46



 F
un

d 
N

am
e 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
D

at
e

 E
st

im
at

ed
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
 P

la
n 

As
se

ts
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Ta
rg

et
 N

et
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

%
 F

un
de

d
 P

ol
ic

e 
Re

tir
ee

 In
co

m
e 

Pl
an

 (c
lo

se
d)

* 
6/

30
/2

02
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
79

.9
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
.8

3 
2

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

74
.1

 
7.

29
%

 P
ol

ic
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 R
et

ire
e 

H
ea

lth
 P

la
n 

(n
ew

)*
 

7/
1/

20
19

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

.4
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
.4

9 
2

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
.9

 
6.

16
%

 F
ire

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s R

et
ire

e 
H

ea
lth

 P
la

n*
 

7/
1/

20
19

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

.8
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

1.
31

 
1

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
.5

 
43

.8
%

 R
et

ire
e 

H
ea

lth
 P

re
m

iu
m

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

Pl
an

 (N
on

-S
af

et
y 

M
em

be
rs

)*
 

7/
1/

20
19

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

.4
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

7.
81

 
1

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
.7

 
40

.6
2%

 S
af

et
y 

M
em

be
rs

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d*
 

6/
30

/2
02

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
.8

6 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 0

.1
0 

2
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

76
 

5.
4%

 M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
Ca

lP
ER

S 
Pl

an
* 

6/
30

/2
01

9
1,

09
5.

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
76

6.
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
8.

2 
70

.0
%

 P
ol

ic
e 

Ca
lP

ER
S 

Pl
an

* 
6/

30
/2

01
9

43
8.

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
8.

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

0.
9 

61
.1

%
 F

ire
 C

al
PE

RS
 P

la
n*

 
6/

30
/2

01
9

28
6.

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
3.

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
83

.0
0 

71
.0

%
 T

O
TA

L 
2,

03
6.

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

28
5.

8
$ 

   
   

   
-

75
1.

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

63
.1

%

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

AS
B6

7 
an

d 
68

 th
e 

An
nu

al
 R

eq
ui

re
d 

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

(A
RC

) i
s n

o 
lo

ng
er

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 F

un
di

ng
 T

ar
ge

t: 

 2
 - 

pa
y 

as
 y

ou
 g

o 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 a
nd

 R
et

ire
e 

Be
ne

fit
s 

Fu
nd

ed
 S

ta
tu

s 
(d

ol
la

rs
 in

 m
ill

io
ns

)  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
tt

ac
hm

en
t 1

 1
 - 

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll 

 *
Re

tir
ee

 M
ed

ic
al

 P
la

n 
da

ta
 fr

om
 a

ct
ur

ia
l r

ep
or

ts
 fr

om
 B

ar
te

l A
so

ci
at

es
, L

LC
 a

nd
 C

al
PE

RS
 P

la
ns

 d
at

a 
fr

om
 C

al
PE

RS
 

4
7



At
ta

ch
m

en
t 2

Ex
hi

bi
t A

FY
 P

rin
ci

pa
l 

In
te

re
st

 P
rin

ci
pa

l 
In

te
re

st
 P

ri
nc

ip
al

 
In

te
re

st
 P

rin
ci

pa
l 

In
te

re
st

 P
ri

nc
ip

al
 

In
te

re
st

 P
ri

nc
ip

al
 

In
te

re
st

 P
rin

ci
pa

l 
In

te
re

st
 P

rin
ci

pa
l 

In
te

re
st

20
20

14
2,

90
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
21

34
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
26

1,
26

8.
75

   
  

58
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
33

3,
29

5.
14

   
   

   
  

33
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
56

1,
12

5.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
85

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

02
2,

96
2.

50
   

   
   

  
29

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
45

0,
73

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
66

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
07

0,
05

6.
26

   
   

   
  

84
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

3,
52

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
5,

91
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

4,
20

2,
97

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,1

12
,9

72
.6

5
   

   
   

   
13

6,
99

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
22

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
28

4,
95

0.
00

   
  

38
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
42

8,
68

7.
50

   
   

   
  

35
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
54

4,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
89

0,
58

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
30

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
43

5,
73

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
69

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
03

6,
18

1.
26

   
   

   
  

71
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

30
8,

94
0.

00
   

   
   

  
4,

85
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

4,
92

9,
08

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
78

4,
08

3.
76

   
   

   
   

  
13

2,
14

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
23

26
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
27

2,
07

5.
00

   
  

39
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
40

9,
31

2.
50

   
   

   
  

37
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
52

6,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
27

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
77

9,
83

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
32

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

0,
11

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
73

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0,
55

6.
26

   
   

   
  

74
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

28
0,

34
0.

00
   

   
   

  
5,

09
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

4,
68

8,
23

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
77

8,
23

3.
76

   
   

   
   

  
12

7,
05

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
24

27
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
25

8,
57

5.
00

   
  

41
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
38

9,
06

2.
50

   
   

   
  

38
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
50

7,
12

5.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
38

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
66

3,
58

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
33

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

3,
73

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
76

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

96
3,

18
1.

26
   

   
   

   
  

77
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
0,

74
0.

00
   

   
   

  
5,

32
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

4,
43

6,
00

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
76

1,
00

8.
76

   
   

   
   

  
12

1,
72

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
25

28
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
24

4,
57

5.
00

   
  

43
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
36

7,
81

2.
50

   
   

   
  

40
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
49

1,
42

5.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
49

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
54

1,
71

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

6,
61

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
80

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

92
3,

93
1.

26
   

   
   

   
  

80
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

22
3,

79
0.

00
   

   
   

  
5,

57
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

4,
17

9,
85

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
75

4,
85

8.
76

   
   

   
   

  
11

6,
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
26

30
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
22

9,
95

0.
00

   
  

45
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
34

5,
56

2.
50

   
   

   
  

42
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
47

8,
78

7.
50

   
   

   
  

2,
62

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
41

3,
71

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
37

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
37

0,
46

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
84

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

88
2,

68
1.

26
   

   
   

   
  

82
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

19
5,

79
0.

00
   

   
   

  
5,

84
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

3,
91

6,
94

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
75

6,
94

6.
26

   
   

   
   

  
11

0,
31

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
27

31
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
21

4,
57

5.
00

   
  

48
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
32

2,
06

2.
50

   
   

   
  

43
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
46

5,
23

7.
50

   
   

   
  

2,
76

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
30

6,
68

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
38

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

5,
36

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
88

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

84
3,

85
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

85
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

16
6,

91
5.

00
   

   
   

  
6,

11
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

3,
67

4,
69

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
78

9,
69

6.
26

   
   

   
   

  
10

4,
19

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
28

33
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
19

8,
32

5.
00

   
  

50
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
29

7,
31

2.
50

   
   

   
  

44
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
44

9,
35

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
84

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
22

2,
68

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
40

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
33

9,
56

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
92

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
7,

75
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

88
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

13
6,

99
0.

00
   

   
   

  
6,

33
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

3,
45

1,
98

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
78

6,
98

3.
76

   
   

   
   

  
97

,8
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
29

35
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
18

1,
07

5.
00

   
  

53
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
27

1,
43

7.
50

   
   

   
  

46
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
43

1,
15

0.
00

   
   

   
  

1,
96

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
15

0,
68

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
42

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

2,
96

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
96

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

77
9,

15
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

91
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

10
6,

01
5.

00
   

   
   

  
5,

61
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

3,
24

2,
48

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
85

2,
48

3.
76

   
   

   
   

  
92

,2
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
30

37
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
16

2,
95

0.
00

   
  

55
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
24

4,
31

2.
50

   
   

   
  

48
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
41

2,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
  

88
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
8,

08
7.

50
   

   
   

   
  

45
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
7,

71
2.

50
   

   
   

   
  

98
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

7,
93

1.
26

   
   

   
   

  
95

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
07

3,
99

0.
00

   
   

   
  

4,
66

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
3,

06
7,

23
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

73
2,

23
3.

76
   

   
   

   
  

87
,5

85
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
31

39
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
14

3,
82

5.
00

   
  

58
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
21

5,
81

2.
50

   
   

   
  

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
39

2,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
  

30
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

89
,9

31
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
47

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

3,
91

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

73
1,

90
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

98
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

04
0,

74
0.

00
   

   
   

  
4,

23
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
90

8,
77

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
14

3,
77

7.
51

   
   

   
   

  
83

,3
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
32

41
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
12

5,
75

0.
00

   
  

61
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
18

8,
88

7.
50

   
   

   
  

52
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
37

2,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
  

31
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

79
,8

56
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

9,
58

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
1,

03
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
1,

45
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

1,
01

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
6,

44
0.

00
   

   
   

  
4,

39
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
75

4,
22

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
14

4,
22

7.
51

   
   

   
   

  
78

,9
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
33

43
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
10

8,
95

0.
00

   
  

64
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
16

3,
78

7.
50

   
   

   
  

54
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
35

0,
71

2.
50

   
   

   
  

32
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

69
,2

53
.1

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

4,
81

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
1,

06
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

67
0,

10
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

1,
05

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
97

3,
45

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
4,

54
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
60

1,
07

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
14

6,
07

4.
39

   
   

   
   

  
74

,4
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
34

45
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
94

,7
25

.0
0

   
   

 
66

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

13
7,

68
7.

50
   

   
   

  
56

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

32
7,

92
1.

88
   

   
   

  
33

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

,9
06

.2
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0,

87
5.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
09

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
63

7,
78

1.
26

   
   

   
   

  
1,

08
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

93
9,

32
7.

50
   

   
   

   
  

4,
71

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

44
6,

22
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

15
6,

22
4.

40
   

   
   

   
  

69
,7

05
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
35

46
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
82

,2
00

.0
0

   
   

 
69

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

11
4,

03
7.

50
   

   
   

  
59

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

30
4,

10
0.

01
   

   
   

  
34

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

,0
06

.2
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
7,

81
2.

50
   

   
   

   
  

1,
12

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

4,
48

1.
26

   
   

   
   

  
1,

12
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

90
4,

06
5.

00
   

   
   

   
  

4,
86

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

29
2,

70
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

15
2,

70
2.

53
   

   
   

   
  

64
,8

45
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
36

48
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
68

,7
00

.0
0

   
   

 
71

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

95
,6

43
.7

5
   

   
   

   
  

61
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
27

8,
58

7.
51

   
   

   
  

36
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
,6

68
.7

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

3,
96

8.
75

   
   

   
   

  
1,

16
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

57
0,

20
6.

26
   

   
   

   
  

1,
15

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
86

7,
66

5.
00

   
   

   
   

  
5,

03
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

2,
13

8,
44

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
16

8,
44

0.
03

   
   

   
   

  
59

,8
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
37

49
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
64

,5
75

.0
0

   
   

 
73

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

76
,6

50
.0

0
   

   
   

   
  

64
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
25

1,
24

3.
76

   
   

   
  

37
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,6

62
.5

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

9,
26

8.
75

   
   

   
   

  
1,

19
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

53
4,

88
1.

26
   

   
   

   
  

1,
19

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
83

0,
12

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
5,

19
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
98

7,
40

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
17

7,
40

8.
78

   
   

   
   

  
54

,6
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
38

51
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
39

,6
00

.0
0

   
   

 
75

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

56
,3

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
  

66
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
22

2,
69

6.
88

   
   

   
  

38
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
97

8.
13

   
   

   
   

   
   

59
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
3,

67
5.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
23

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
49

7,
73

7.
51

   
   

   
   

  
1,

23
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

78
5,

50
2.

50
   

   
   

   
  

5,
36

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

80
2,

51
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

16
7,

51
5.

02
   

   
   

   
  

49
,2

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
39

52
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
24

,0
75

.0
0

   
   

 
77

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

35
,4

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
  

69
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
19

2,
94

6.
88

   
   

   
  

61
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
7,

17
5.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
27

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

8,
67

5.
01

   
   

   
   

  
1,

28
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

73
9,

19
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

5,
15

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

62
7,

46
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

78
2,

46
1.

89
   

   
   

   
  

44
,1

05
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
40

54
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
8,

10
0.

00
   

   
   

79
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
11

,9
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

  
72

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

16
1,

88
4.

38
   

   
   

  
63

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

0,
12

5.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

31
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

41
8,

36
2.

51
   

   
   

   
  

1,
33

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
69

1,
00

2.
50

   
   

   
   

  
5,

33
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
45

1,
39

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
78

1,
39

9.
39

   
   

   
   

  
38

,7
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
41

76
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
12

8,
92

5.
00

   
   

   
  

65
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
2,

45
6.

25
   

   
   

   
  

1,
35

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
37

5,
95

6.
26

   
   

   
   

  
1,

38
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

64
1,

12
7.

50
   

   
   

   
  

4,
14

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

28
8,

46
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

43
3,

46
5.

01
   

   
   

   
  

34
,6

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
42

79
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
94

,0
50

.0
0

   
   

   
   

  
68

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

4,
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

39
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
1,

35
0.

01
   

   
   

   
  

1,
43

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
58

9,
37

7.
50

   
   

   
   

  
4,

30
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
13

8,
87

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
43

8,
87

7.
51

   
   

   
   

  
30

,3
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
43

83
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
57

,6
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

  
70

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

4,
17

5.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

44
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

28
5,

28
1.

26
   

   
   

   
  

1,
48

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
53

5,
56

5.
00

   
   

   
   

  
4,

46
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

98
2,

62
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
44

2,
62

1.
26

   
   

   
   

  
25

,8
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
44

86
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
19

,4
62

.5
0

   
   

   
   

  
73

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
82

,5
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
48

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

7,
75

0.
01

   
   

   
   

  
1,

54
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

47
9,

87
7.

50
   

   
   

   
  

4,
63

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
81

9,
66

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

44
9,

66
5.

01
   

   
   

   
  

21
,2

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
45

76
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
,0

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

53
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
8,

67
5.

01
   

   
   

   
  

1,
60

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

1,
94

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
3,

90
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

67
0,

69
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
57

0,
69

0.
01

   
   

   
   

  
17

,3
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
46

79
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
,6

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

58
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
7,

97
5.

01
   

   
   

   
  

1,
65

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

7,
54

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
4,

03
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

54
2,

19
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
57

7,
19

0.
01

   
   

   
   

  
13

,3
05

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
47

82
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,3

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

63
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

84
,6

28
.1

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

71
0,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
1,

27
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

4,
17

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
40

8,
27

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

57
8,

27
3.

13
   

   
   

   
  

9,
13

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
48

1,
69

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

,5
18

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
77

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

3,
13

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
3,

46
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

28
1,

64
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
74

1,
64

8.
75

   
   

   
   

  
5,

67
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
49

1,
83

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

2,
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

83
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

19
2,

95
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
02

2,
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
3,

84
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
50

1,
89

0,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

0,
73

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

89
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

13
0,

73
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
02

0,
73

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

95
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

20
51

1,
95

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
66

,4
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
95

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
66

,4
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

02
1,

47
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 G
ra

nt
 T

ot
al

 
7,

79
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

3,
06

8,
81

9
$ 

   
 

11
,6

90
,0

00
$ 

   
 

4,
50

5,
01

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,3

80
,0

00
$ 

   
  

8,
02

1,
48

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

25
,9

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
5,

50
4,

81
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,2

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
6,

64
6,

64
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

31
,8

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,5
61

,0
16

$ 
   

   
   

  
38

,0
00

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
,0

14
,5

28
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
2,

90
5,

00
0

$ 
   

  
68

,3
22

,3
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

21
1,

22
7,

31
4

$ 
   

   
   

   

G
en

er
al

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

Bo
nd

s

To
ta

l 
En

d 
of

 F
Y 

G
O

 B
on

ds
 

Ba
la

nc
e

 A
nn

ua
l T

ot
al

 P
 &

 I 

20
10

 M
ea

su
re

 F
F,

 S
er

ie
s 

B
20

14
 M

ea
su

re
 M

 (2
01

4 
St

re
et

 a
nd

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 W
at

er
sh

ed
)

20
15

 G
O

 R
ef

un
di

ng
 B

on
ds

 (R
ef

un
di

ng
 

M
ea

su
re

 G
, S

, I
)

20
16

 M
ea

su
re

 M
 (2

01
6 

St
re

et
 a

nd
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 W

at
er

sh
ed

)
20

09
 M

ea
su

re
 F

F,
 S

er
ie

s 
A

20
17

 M
ea

su
re

 T
1 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

d
20

20
 M

ea
su

re
 O

 A
ff

or
da

bl
e 

H
ou

si
ng

48



At
ta

ch
m

en
t 2

 
Ex

hi
bi

t B

FY
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

In
te

re
st

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
20

4,
89

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
21

12
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

6,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

76
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
22

13
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

0,
10

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

5,
10

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

63
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
23

14
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

2,
20

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

2,
20

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

49
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
24

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

3,
86

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

3,
86

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

34
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
25

15
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

5,
09

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
09

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

18
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
26

16
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

5,
89

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
89

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

02
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
27

17
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

6,
11

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

1,
11

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

84
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
28

18
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

5,
76

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
76

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

66
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
29

19
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

4,
84

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

9,
84

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

46
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
30

21
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

3,
20

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

3,
20

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

25
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
31

22
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

0,
83

7.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
83

7.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

03
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
32

23
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

7,
75

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

2,
75

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

80
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
33

24
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

3,
95

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

8,
95

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

55
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
34

26
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

9,
43

7.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

9,
43

7.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

29
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
35

27
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

4,
05

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

9,
05

6.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

02
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
36

29
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

7,
81

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

7,
81

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

73
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   

20
37

31
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
90

,5
62

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0,

56
2.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
42

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
38

32
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
72

,3
06

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
7,

30
6.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
09

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

20
39

34
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

,0
43

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
8,

04
3.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
40

36
5,

00
0

32
,6

31
.2

5
39

7,
63

1.
25

38
5,

00
0

20
41

38
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,0
68

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
6,

06
8.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

4,
89

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
51

7,
35

6.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
40

7,
35

6.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

20
10

 C
O

P 
An

im
al

 S
he

lte
r

En
d 

of
 F

Y 
CO

Ps
 

Ba
la

nc
e

To
ta

l A
nn

ua
l P

 &
 I

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

of
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n

4
9



At
ta

ch
m

en
t 2

Ex
hi

bi
t C

FY
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

In
te

re
st

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
In

te
re

st
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

In
te

re
st

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
In

te
re

st

20
20

52
,4

65
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
21

32
0,

87
9.

33
   

   
   

   
17

8,
81

7.
04

   
   

   
  

1,
04

9,
12

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

4,
64

5.
46

   
   

   
   

  
78

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
13

0,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
89

3,
71

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

04
3,

71
2.

50
   

   
   

   
 

50
,3

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
22

33
7,

27
4.

63
   

   
   

   
16

2,
36

3.
19

   
   

   
  

1,
10

2,
72

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

0,
84

9.
31

   
   

   
   

  
80

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
10

6,
85

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
24

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0,
06

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

04
5,

06
2.

50
   

   
   

   
 

48
,0

70
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
23

35
2,

49
8.

83
   

   
   

   
14

6,
88

1.
34

   
   

   
  

1,
15

2,
50

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

0,
23

1.
16

   
   

   
   

  
84

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
07

4,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
34

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
70

1,
76

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

04
6,

76
2.

50
   

   
   

   
 

45
,7

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
24

36
6,

55
1.

94
   

   
   

   
13

0,
66

7.
56

   
   

   
  

1,
19

8,
44

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
42

7,
21

9.
93

   
   

   
   

  
87

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
04

1,
05

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
43

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
59

8,
93

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

03
3,

93
7.

49
   

   
   

   
 

43
,2

90
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
25

38
6,

46
0.

51
   

   
   

   
11

1,
84

2.
25

   
   

   
  

1,
26

3,
53

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

5,
67

0.
25

   
   

   
   

  
90

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

6,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
  

2,
55

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
48

3,
76

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

03
8,

76
2.

50
   

   
   

   
 

40
,7

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
26

40
5,

19
7.

99
   

   
   

   
92

,0
50

.7
9

   
   

   
   

  
1,

32
4,

80
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0,

96
1.

71
   

   
   

   
  

94
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
97

0,
05

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

67
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

36
3,

06
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
03

8,
06

2.
50

   
   

   
   

 
38

,0
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
27

42
7,

44
8.

74
   

   
   

   
71

,2
34

.6
2

   
   

   
   

  
1,

39
7,

55
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
2,

90
2.

88
   

   
   

   
  

98
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

2,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

80
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

23
6,

38
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
04

1,
38

7.
50

   
   

   
   

 
35

,2
55

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
28

44
2,

67
2.

95
   

   
   

   
53

,9
08

.3
1

   
   

   
   

  
1,

44
7,

32
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
6,

25
4.

19
   

   
   

   
  

1,
02

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
89

3,
05

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

91
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

12
3,

21
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
03

3,
21

2.
50

   
   

   
   

 
32

,3
45

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
29

45
9,

06
8.

24
   

   
   

   
40

,0
95

.2
8

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0,

93
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
1,

09
2.

22
   

   
   

   
  

1,
06

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
85

2,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
3,

02
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

02
3,

43
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
04

3,
43

7.
50

   
   

   
   

 
29

,3
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
30

32
0,

87
9.

33
   

   
   

   
16

,4
61

.1
7

   
   

   
   

  
1,

04
9,

12
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
2,

69
5.

08
   

   
   

   
  

1,
10

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

9,
85

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

47
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
92

9,
00

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
40

4,
00

6.
25

   
   

   
   

 
26

,8
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
31

1,
45

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

,1
87

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
14

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
76

5,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

59
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
83

9,
83

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
43

4,
83

7.
50

   
   

   
   

 
24

,2
55

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
32

1,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,3
12

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
19

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
71

9,
85

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
2,

69
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
74

5,
16

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
43

5,
16

2.
50

   
   

   
   

 
21

,5
65

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
33

1,
24

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
67

2,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

24
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
67

2,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

2,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
34

1,
29

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

2,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

29
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
62

2,
65

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

2,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
19

,0
35

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
35

1,
34

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

1,
05

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

34
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
57

1,
05

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

1,
05

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
17

,6
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
36

1,
38

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

0,
85

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

38
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
53

0,
85

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

0,
85

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
16

,3
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
37

1,
42

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

9,
45

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

42
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
48

9,
45

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

4,
45

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
14

,8
90

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
38

1,
46

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
44

6,
70

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

46
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
44

6,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

1,
70

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
13

,4
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
39

1,
51

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

2,
75

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

51
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
40

2,
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

2,
75

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
11

,9
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
40

1,
55

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

7,
45

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

55
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
35

7,
45

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

2,
45

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
10

,3
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

20
41

1,
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

0,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

60
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
31

0,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

0,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
8,

76
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
42

1,
65

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

2,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

65
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
26

2,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

2,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
7,

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
43

1,
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

3,
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

70
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
21

3,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

3,
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
5,

41
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
44

1,
75

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

2,
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

75
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
16

2,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
91

2,
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
3,

66
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
45

1,
80

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

10
9,

80
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

1,
80

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

10
9,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

91
4,

80
0.

00
   

   
   

   
 

1,
85

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 

20
46

1,
85

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
  

55
,6

50
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

85
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
55

,6
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
91

0,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

3,
81

8,
93

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
00

4,
32

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

15
,4

36
,0

68
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
43

2,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

,2
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

,5
09

,8
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
52

,4
65

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

20
,9

46
,1

44
$ 

   
   

   
  

73
,4

11
,1

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

Be
rk

el
ey

 R
ep

. 2
01

2 
Re

fu
nd

in
g

19
47

 C
en

te
r 2

01
2 

Re
fu

nd
in

g
En

d 
of

 F
Y 

Re
v 

Bo
nd

s 
Ba

la
nc

e

Re
ve

nu
e 

Bo
nd

s

An
nu

al
 T

ot
al

 P
 &

 I

To
ta

l
20

16
 P

ar
ki

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

on
d

5
0



Capital Assets Infrastructure Attachment 3

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Total 
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 1- 5

Parks, Park Buildings, Pools, Waterfront, and Camps
Available Funding(1) $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $8,750,000
Expenditures $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 $8,750,000

Capital & Maint. Need (2) $217,039,000
Unfunded Liability ($219,594,780) ($222,201,676) ($224,860,709) ($227,572,923) ($230,339,382) ($230,339,382)

Public Buildings 
Available Funding $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $4,000,000
Expenditures $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $4,000,000

Capital & Maint. Need $282,300,000
Unfunded Liability ($287,130,000) ($292,056,600) ($297,081,732) ($302,207,367) ($307,435,514) ($307,435,514)

Sidewalks
Available Funding $700,000 $700,000 $700,000 $700,000 $700,000 $3,500,000
Expenditures $700,000 $700,000 $700,000 $700,000 $700,000 $3,500,000

Capital & Maint. Need $11,120,000
Unfunded Liability ($10,628,400) ($10,126,968) ($9,615,507) ($9,093,818) ($8,561,694) ($8,561,694)

Streets & Roads
Available Funding $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $34,100,000
Expenditures $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $6,820,000 $34,100,000

Capital & Maint. Need $250,000,000
Unfunded Liability ($248,043,600) ($246,048,072) ($244,012,633) ($241,936,486) ($239,818,816) ($239,818,816)

Sewers
Available Funding $21,974,583 $16,456,882 $20,188,912 $24,206,893 $24,700,000 $107,527,270
Expenditures $21,974,583 $16,456,882 $20,188,912 $24,206,893 $24,700,000 $107,527,270

Capital & Maint. Need $193,800,000

Unfunded Liability ($175,261,925) ($161,981,144) ($144,628,077) ($122,829,608) ($100,092,200) ($100,092,200)

Storm Water
Available Funding $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $6,500,000
Expenditures $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $6,500,000

Capital & Maint. Need $245,820,000

Unfunded Liability ($249,410,400) ($253,072,608) ($256,808,060) ($260,618,221) ($264,504,586) ($264,504,586)

Traffic Signals & Parking Infrastructure

Available Funding $400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $2,000,000

Expenditures $400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $2,000,000

Capital & Maint. Need $14,838,800

Unfunded Liability ($14,727,576) ($14,614,128) ($14,498,410) ($14,380,378) ($14,259,986) ($14,259,986)

TOTAL
Available Funding $33,744,583 $28,226,882 $31,958,912 $35,976,893 $36,470,000 $166,377,270
Expenditures $33,744,583 $28,226,882 $31,958,912 $35,976,893 $36,470,000 $166,377,270
T1 Funding: $100M Infrastructure Bond(3) $10,650,000 $10,650,000 $10,650,000 $10,650,000 $10,650,000 $53,250,000

Capital & Maint. Need $1,214,917,800
Unfunded Liability ($1,193,933,681) ($1,178,935,473) ($1,159,905,270) ($1,136,476,483) ($1,112,086,012) ($1,112,086,012)

(3) The remaining $53.25M of the bond allocated to project budgets is estimated to be equally distributed over 5 years, ($10.65 million/year). 

(1) Unless otherwise noted, available funding includes recurring sources of capital and major maintenance funding.

(2) Capital & Maint. Needs are current estimates of unfunded needs. Needs are estimated to increase at a rate of 2% per year.

51



Pu
bl

ic
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 - 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l o

f A
ss

et
s 

Va
lu

ed
 @

 $
5M

 o
r M

or
e

O
th

er
 I

D
.

A
d

dr
es

s
S

q 
F

ee
t

Y
ea

r 
B

ui
lt

L
as

t 
A

p
pr

.
O

cc
u

p
ie

d 
A

s
L

ea
se

d 
O

w
ne

d
 T

ot
al

 V
al

u
es

 

5
2



Pu
bl

ic
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 - 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l o

f A
ss

et
s 

Va
lu

ed
 @

 $
5M

 o
r M

or
e

O
th

er
 I

D
.

A
d

dr
es

s
S

q 
F

ee
t

Y
ea

r 
B

ui
lt

L
as

t 
A

p
pr

.
O

cc
u

p
ie

d 
A

s
L

ea
se

d 
O

w
ne

d
 T

ot
al

 V
al

u
es

 

T
O

T
A

L

5
3



A
tt

ac
hm

en
t 4

FY
 2

02
1

FY
 2

02
2

FY
 2

02
3

FY
 2

02
4

FY
 2

02
5

FY
 2

02
6

FY
 2

02
7

FY
 2

02
8

FY
 2

02
9

FY
 2

03
0

U
nd

es
ig

na
te

d 
Re

ve
nu

es

Se
cu

re
d 

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
68

,0
58

,5
14

71
,1

21
,1

47
73

,6
10

,3
88

76
,1

86
,7

51
78

,8
53

,2
87

81
,6

13
,1

52
84

,4
69

,6
13

87
,4

26
,0

49
90

,4
85

,9
61

90
,4

85
,9

61

U
ns

ec
ur

ed
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
xe

s
3,

00
0,

00
0

3,
00

0,
00

0
3,

00
0,

00
0

3,
00

0,
00

0
3,

00
0,

00
0

3,
00

0,
00

0
3,

00
0,

00
0

3,
00

0,
00

0
3,

00
0,

00
0

3,
00

0,
00

0

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l T
ax

es
2,

00
0,

00
0

2,
00

0,
00

0
2,

00
0,

00
0

2,
00

0,
00

0
2,

00
0,

00
0

2,
00

0,
00

0
2,

00
0,

00
0

2,
00

0,
00

0
2,

00
0,

00
0

2,
00

0,
00

0

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ra

ns
fe

r T
ax

es
16

,5
00

,0
00

12
,5

00
,0

00
12

,5
00

,0
00

12
,5

00
,0

00
12

,5
00

,0
00

12
,5

00
,0

00
12

,5
00

,0
00

12
,5

00
,0

00
12

,5
00

,0
00

12
,5

00
,0

00

Sa
le

s T
ax

es
16

,7
27

,4
92

16
,7

05
,1

00
17

,5
69

,8
00

18
,4

75
,3

00
19

,1
17

,7
00

19
,5

50
,4

00
19

,9
62

,0
00

20
,1

61
,6

20
20

,3
63

,2
36

20
,3

63
,2

36

So
da

 T
ax

97
0,

79
4

99
0,

21
0

1,
01

0,
01

4
1,

03
0,

21
4

1,
05

0,
81

9
1,

07
1,

83
5

1,
09

3,
27

2

U
til

ity
 U

se
rs

 T
ax

es
12

,7
50

,0
00

13
,0

00
,0

00
13

,0
00

,0
00

13
,0

00
,0

00
13

,0
00

,0
00

13
,0

00
,0

00
13

,0
00

,0
00

13
,0

00
,0

00
13

,0
00

,0
00

13
,0

00
,0

00

Tr
an

si
en

t O
cc

up
an

cy
 T

ax
es

(T
O

T)
3,

07
0,

00
0

3,
39

4,
88

0
3,

49
6,

72
6

3,
60

1,
62

8
3,

70
9,

67
7

3,
84

9,
90

3
3,

96
5,

40
0

4,
05

3,
66

4
4,

17
5,

27
4

4,
30

0,
53

2

TO
T 

fo
r S

ho
rt

-T
er

m
 R

en
ta

ls
47

6,
26

0
50

0,
07

3
52

5,
07

7
55

1,
33

0
57

8,
89

7
60

7,
84

2
63

8,
23

4
67

0,
14

6
70

3,
65

3
73

8,
83

6

Bu
si

ne
ss

 L
ic

en
se

 T
ax

es
12

,9
84

,1
92

14
,0

43
,7

02
14

,6
05

,4
50

15
,1

89
,6

68
15

,7
97

,2
55

16
,4

29
,1

45
17

,0
86

,3
11

17
,7

69
,7

63
18

,4
80

,5
54

19
,2

19
,7

75

Bu
si

ne
ss

 L
ic

en
se

 T
ax

es
 fo

r C
an

na
bi

s 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l
1,

30
0,

00
0

1,
32

6,
00

0
1,

35
2,

52
0

1,
37

9,
57

0
1,

40
7,

16
2

1,
43

5,
30

5
1,

46
4,

01
1

1,
49

3,
29

1
1,

49
3,

29
1

1,
52

3,
15

7

Ve
hi

cl
e 

In
 L

ie
u 

Ta
xe

s
14

,3
84

,4
59

15
,0

31
,7

60
15

,5
57

,8
72

16
,1

02
,3

97
16

,6
65

,9
81

17
,2

49
,2

90
17

,8
53

,0
16

18
,4

77
,8

71
18

,4
77

,8
71

19
,1

24
,5

97

O
th

er
 T

ax
es

1,
45

6,
56

0
1,

47
1,

12
6

1,
48

5,
83

7
1,

50
0,

69
5

1,
51

5,
70

2
1,

53
0,

85
9

1,
54

6,
16

8
1,

56
1,

62
9

1,
56

1,
62

9
1,

57
7,

24
6

Pa
rk

in
g 

Fi
ne

s
4,

04
9,

00
0

4,
12

9,
98

0
4,

21
2,

58
0

4,
29

6,
83

1
4,

38
2,

76
8

4,
47

0,
42

3
4,

55
9,

83
2

4,
65

1,
02

8
4,

74
4,

04
9

4,
83

8,
93

0

M
ov

in
g 

Vi
ol

at
io

ns
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0
19

0,
00

0

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e 

4,
05

1,
20

0
4,

00
0,

00
0

4,
00

0,
00

0
4,

00
0,

00
0

4,
00

0,
00

0
4,

00
0,

00
0

4,
00

0,
00

0
4,

00
0,

00
0

4,
00

0,
00

0
4,

00
0,

00
0

Am
bu

la
nc

e 
Fe

es
3,

34
2,

15
9

3,
34

2,
15

9
4,

20
0,

00
0

4,
20

0,
00

0
4,

20
0,

00
0

4,
20

0,
00

0
4,

20
0,

00
0

4,
20

0,
00

0
4,

20
0,

00
0

4,
20

0,
00

0

Fr
an

ch
ise

 F
ee

s
1,

58
1,

65
0

2,
15

2,
51

3
2,

19
5,

56
3

2,
23

9,
47

4
2,

28
4,

26
3

2,
32

9,
94

8
2,

37
6,

54
7

2,
42

4,
07

8
2,

47
2,

56
0

2,
47

2,
56

0

In
di

re
ct

 c
os

t r
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

5,
49

0,
00

0
5,

49
0,

00
0

5,
49

0,
00

0
5,

49
0,

00
0

5,
49

0,
00

0
5,

49
0,

00
0

5,
49

0,
00

0
5,

49
0,

00
0

5,
49

0,
00

0
5,

49
0,

00
0

Tr
an

sf
er

s
17

,2
74

,2
93

5,
87

4,
29

3
5,

87
4,

29
3

5,
87

4,
29

3
5,

87
4,

29
3

5,
87

4,
29

3
5,

87
4,

29
3

5,
87

4,
29

3
5,

87
4,

29
3

5,
87

4,
29

3

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
s

6,
24

6,
34

8
6,

24
6,

34
8

6,
24

6,
34

8
6,

24
6,

34
8

6,
24

6,
34

8
6,

24
6,

34
8

6,
24

6,
34

8
6,

24
6,

34
8

6,
24

6,
34

8
6,

24
6,

34
8

To
ta

l U
nd

es
ig

na
te

d 
Re

ve
nu

es
19

5,
90

2,
92

2
18

6,
50

9,
29

1
19

2,
12

2,
46

7
19

7,
05

4,
50

1
20

1,
86

4,
15

2
20

6,
63

8,
74

4
21

1,
51

5,
04

3
21

5,
18

9,
78

1
21

9,
45

8,
71

9
22

1,
14

5,
47

0

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Re
ve

nu
es

Pr
op

. T
ra

ns
fe

r T
ax

es
 fo

r c
ap

ita
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

3,
50

0,
00

0
3,

50
0,

00
0

3,
50

0,
00

0
3,

50
0,

00
0

3,
50

0,
00

0
3,

50
0,

00
0

3,
50

0,
00

0
3,

50
0,

00
0

3,
50

0,
00

0

Pr
op

. T
ra

ns
fe

r T
ax

es
-M

ea
su

re
 P

6,
24

7,
41

4
6,

24
7,

41
4

6,
24

7,
41

4
6,

24
7,

41
4

6,
24

7,
41

4
6,

24
7,

41
4

6,
24

7,
41

4
6,

24
7,

41
4

3,
12

3,
70

7

M
ea

su
re

 U
1 

fo
r l

ow
 in

co
m

e 
ho

us
in

g
2,

70
0,

00
0

2,
80

8,
00

0
2,

92
0,

32
0

3,
03

7,
13

3
3,

15
8,

61
8

3,
28

4,
96

3
3,

41
6,

36
1

3,
55

3,
01

6
3,

69
5,

13
6

3,
84

2,
94

2

To
ta

l D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Re
ve

nu
es

8,
94

7,
41

4
12

,5
55

,4
14

12
,6

67
,7

34
12

,7
84

,5
47

12
,9

06
,0

32
13

,0
32

,3
77

13
,1

63
,7

75
13

,3
00

,4
30

10
,3

18
,8

43
7,

34
2,

94
2

TO
TA

L 
RE

VE
N

U
ES

 A
N

D
 T

RA
N

SF
ER

S
20

4,
85

0,
33

6
19

9,
06

4,
70

5
20

4,
79

0,
20

1
20

9,
83

9,
04

8
21

4,
77

0,
18

4
21

9,
67

1,
12

1
22

4,
67

8,
81

8
22

8,
49

0,
21

1
22

9,
77

7,
56

2
22

8,
48

8,
41

2

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

Re
ve

nu
e 

FY
 2

02
1 

th
ro

ug
h 

FY
 2

03
0

1.
 S

ec
ur

ed
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
xe

s-
 P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ac
tu

al
 o

r f
or

ec
as

t i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 a
ss

es
se

d 
va

lu
es

: F
Y 

20
21

 7
.7

0%
; F

Y 
20

22
 4

.5
%

;F
Y 

20
23

-F
Y 

20
30

 3
.5

%
. C

on
se

rv
at

iv
el

y 
as

su
m

es
 th

e 
re

al
 

es
ta

te
 m

ar
ke

t w
ill

 re
m

ai
n 

ac
tiv

e 
fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t t
w

o 
ye

ar
s,

 a
nd

 th
en

 d
ip

 a
nd

 le
ve

l o
ff

. 
2.

 U
ns

ec
ur

ed
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
xe

s,
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l T

ax
es

,U
til

ity
 U

se
rs

 T
ax

es
, a

nd
 A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
Fe

es
-H

is
to

ric
al

 re
ve

nu
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 fl

at
 fo

r s
ev

er
al

 y
ea

rs
, a

nd
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 re

m
ai

n 
so

.  
   

   
   

   
  

3.
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Tr
an

sf
er

 T
ax

es
- P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 a

ss
um

e 
a 

$1
6.

5 
m

ill
io

n 
le

ve
l  

fr
om

 F
Y 

20
21

 to
 F

Y 
20

22
 a

nd
 th

en
 a

 d
ro

p 
to

 th
e 

$1
6 

m
ill

io
n 

le
ve

l f
ro

m
 F

Y 
20

22
 th

ro
ug

h 
FY

 2
03

0.
   

   
   

4.
 S

al
es

 T
ax

es
- P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 "

th
e 

m
os

t l
ik

el
y 

ou
tc

om
e"

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 u

p 
to

 F
Y 

20
27

, a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 M

un
iS

er
vi

ce
s,

 th
e 

Ci
ty

's 
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 th

at
 m

ai
nt

ai
ns

 th
e 

Ci
ty

's 
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

da
ta

 b
as

e.
 1

%
 g

ro
w

th
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 a
ft

er
 F

Y 
20

27
.  

   
   

   
   

 
5.

 T
ra

ns
ie

nt
 O

cc
up

an
cy

 T
ax

es
- A

ft
er

 se
ve

ra
l y

ea
rs

 o
f d

ou
bl

e-
di

gi
t g

ro
w

th
, t

hi
s 

re
ve

nu
e 

so
ur

ce
 w

as
 d

ev
as

ta
te

d 
by

 C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

in
 F

Y 
20

21
; T

he
re

af
te

r, 
3%

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

FY
 

20
30

.  
   

   
   

   
  

6.
 B

us
in

es
s L

ic
en

se
 T

ax
es

 (e
xc

lu
di

ng
 C

an
na

bi
s 

Re
cr

ea
tio

na
l)-

H
ug

e 
de

cl
in

e 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 F
Y 

20
21

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 C

O
VI

D-
19

; T
he

re
af

te
r, 

as
su

m
es

 a
 4

%
 g

ro
w

th
 ra

te
 fr

om
 F

Y 
20

22
-F

Y 
20

30
   

   
   

   
  

7.
 B

us
in

es
s L

ic
en

se
 T

ax
es

- C
an

na
bi

s R
ec

re
at

io
na

l- 
As

su
m

es
 a

 4
%

 g
ro

w
th

 ra
te

 fr
om

 F
Y 

20
22

-F
Y 

20
30

.  
   

   
   

   
  

8.
 V

eh
ic

le
 In

 L
ie

u 
Ta

xe
s-

 P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 o
r f

or
ec

as
t i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 a

ss
es

se
d 

va
lu

es
: F

Y 
20

21
 7

.7
0%

; F
Y 

20
22

 4
.5

%
; F

Y 
20

23
-F

Y 
20

30
 3

.5
%

.  
9.

 P
ar

ki
ng

 F
in

es
- T

ic
ke

t w
rit

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
 a

 d
ow

nw
ar

d 
sp

ira
l f

or
 m

an
y 

ye
ar

s;
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 a
ss

um
e 

fla
t r

ev
en

ue
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 fr
om

 F
Y 

20
22

 th
ro

ug
h 

FY
 2

03
0.

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
. I

nt
er

es
t I

nc
om

e-
Th

e 
Fe

d 
lo

w
er

ed
 ra

te
s t

o 
ze

ro
 a

ga
in

. A
ft

er
 a

 b
ig

 h
it 

in
 F

Y 
20

21
, p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
as

su
m

es
 fl

at
 g

ro
w

th
 th

ro
ug

h 
FY

 2
03

0.
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

. F
ra

nc
hi

se
 F

ee
s-

 T
hi

s 
re

ve
nu

e 
so

ur
ce

 h
as

 h
ist

or
ic

al
ly

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 g

ro
w

th
. A

ft
er

 a
 b

ig
 h

it 
in

 F
Y 

20
21

, p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

as
su

m
es

 2
%

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 th

ro
ug

h 
FY

 2
03

0.
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

. I
nd

ire
ct

 C
os

t R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

-R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t i

nc
re

as
es

 re
su

lt 
fr

om
 in

cr
ea

se
s i

n 
th

e 
in

di
re

ct
 c

os
t a

llo
ca

tio
n 

ba
se

 (i
.e

., 
to

ta
l d

ire
ct

 s
al

ar
ie

s 
an

d 
w

ag
es

 in
 th

e 
fu

nd
), 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
th

e 
in

di
re

ct
 c

os
t r

at
e 

or
 b

ot
h.

  P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 a
ss

um
e 

fla
t r

ev
en

ue
 th

ro
ug

h 
FY

 2
03

0.
   

  
13

. T
ra

ns
ie

nt
 O

cc
up

an
cy

 T
ax

es
- S

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 R

en
ta

ls-
 A

ft
er

 a
 b

ig
 h

it 
in

 F
Y 

20
21

 a
s a

 re
su

lt 
of

 C
O

VI
D

-1
9,

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 a
ss

um
e 

a 
4%

 g
ro

w
th

 ra
te

.  
   

   
   

   
14

. S
od

a 
Ta

xe
s-

 T
hi

s 
re

ve
nu

e 
so

ur
ce

 w
as

 a
lw

ay
s e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 d

ec
lin

e,
 a

s 
th

e 
de

cl
in

e 
in

 s
w

ee
t d

rin
ks

 d
ec

lin
e.

 P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 a
ss

um
e 

a 
di

p 
in

 F
Y 

20
21

 a
nd

 th
en

 2
%

 g
ro

w
th

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

ta
x 

su
ns

et
s 

on
 1

2/
31

/2
02

6.
 

PR
O

JE
CT

ED
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
 R

EV
EN

U
ES

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



I. Debt And Contingent Liabilities Score

78. The criteria form the initial debt and contingent liabilities score from the combination of two 
measures: total governmental funds debt service as a percentage of total governmental funds 
expenditures and net direct debt as a percentage of total governmental funds revenue. Debt 
service as a percentage of expenditures measures the annual fixed-cost burden that debt places 
on the government. Debt to revenues measures the total debt burden on the government's 
revenue position rather than the annual cost of the debt, which can be manipulated by 
amortization structures. Net direct debt is calculated as of the date of our analysis, including any 
debt issuance we are currently rating. Debt to expenditures is measured similarly, recognizing 
any near-term changes due to the government's debt structure. Table 14 details the scoring for
the debt and contingent liabilities score. For more information on debt measurement, see "Debt 
Statement Analysis," published Aug. 22, 2006. 

67



79. Qualitative adjustments may raise or lower the final debt and contingent liabilities score 
relative to the initial score, as shown in table 14. The criteria consider pending debt issuance 
through an upward score adjustment when including the planned or recently issued debt results 
in a worse score.

80. The criteria improve the final score by one point when above-average annual debt 
amortization (based on total direct debt) inflates the debt service as a percentage of expenditures 
score and masks the future flexibility stemming from an early deleveraging. The criteria do not 
apply this adjustment when the early amortization results from a near-to-medium term bullet 
maturity that will not be retired with funds on hand. Exposure to interest-rate risk or instrument 
provisions that cause amortization or interest-rate changes beyond the issuer's control increase 
the score by one point, reflecting additional uncertainty as to whether current debt service costs 
will be sustained. Examples include unhedged variable-rate debt or higher interest rates 
resulting from failed remarketings in instruments such as auction-rate securities, variable-rate
demand bonds, and certain direct purchase obligations. 

81. An overall net debt to TMV level of above 10% worsens the score by one point, while a low 
level, below 3%, improves the score by one point. This statistic captures the burden of the local 
government's debt in addition to that of overlapping jurisdictions on the overall tax base. An
atypical debt burden can present extra challenges or flexibility over and above that suggested by 
the individual government's debt burden alone. 

82. The impact of pension and OPEB obligations depends on the degree to which such costs will 
likely escalate and whether the government has plans to address them. Relative to debt, 
governments have a higher level of flexibility to address these costs, both from a temporal 
payment perspective and from an obligation level perspective. Many governments have the 
flexibility to alter benefit levels, and some governments already have availed themselves of this 
ability. Most governments also can pay less than the annual required contribution without 
leaving the fund unable to meet actual payments in the current and following year. On the other 
hand, such delays accelerate the growth rate of future payments. When the potential for such 
accelerations exists and the increased payments would increase budget stress, the final debt and 
contingent liabilities score worsens by one point when a specific and credible plan to address 
this burden is in place. Otherwise, the score worsens by two points relative to the initial score. 
Among the areas of analytic focus when assessing the pension and OPEB burden will be:

The required annual pension payment plus annual OPEB payment as a percentage of 
total governmental funds expenditures. A combined carrying charge of 10% or more will 
be considered elevated, however, we will consider whether we expect the elevated 
payments to result in lower future obligations.
The actuarial funded ratio(s) of the pension plan(s) a local government participates in or 
sponsors. If the ratio(s) are less than 80%, they will receive further review especially 
when the carrying charge is elevated. We also consider the magnitude of the unfunded 
obligation in tandem with the funded ratio(s) when assessing the potential for stress.
The contributions actually made to all pension plans a local government participates in 
or sponsors. The degree to which a local government contributes less than its full 

68



required contribution(s) could be an indication of either short-term cash flow issues or a 
willingness of management to defer difficult decisions.
The OPEB costs exceed 5% of total governmental funds expenditures and the local 
government has limited flexibility to change or amend these benefits. 

83. Finally, another adjustment considers additional future contingent liabilities not yet 
requiring government support. While our debt burden calculation already considers other 
nondirect debt requiring government support and our liquidity score considers the near-term 
impact of any contingent liabilities, the adjustment to the debt score results from a likelihood of 
ongoing payment obligations not yet occurring that represent more than 10% of total 
governmental funds revenues. Once the payment obligations become reality, they are included in 
the debt measure. Examples of contingent liabilities include potential legal judgments, currently 
self-supporting government enterprise debt that is likely to require support in the near future, 
guaranteed debt likely to need support in the near future, and additional costs resulting from 
pending changes in law.

69



Actual Contribution  

Not all pension plans have an actuarial funding plan in place, which can hinder evaluation of 
the funding discipline. One way we may evaluate how effective the most recent year's 
contributions are at reaching 100% funding within a reasonable timeframe is our minimum 
funding progress (MFP) metric. The MFP metric assesses whether the most recent employer and 
employee contributions cover total service cost plus unfunded interest cost plus 1/30th of the 
principal and is defined as follows:

MFP = SC + IC + NPL/30

Service cost = new benefits earned during the year
Unfunded interest cost = interest earned during the year on the net pension liability
Net pension liability (NPL) = NPL at beginning of year

When contributions are to equal service cost plus unfunded interest cost alone, the plan would 
typically maintain its current funding levels and not make any progress toward full funding; in 
other words, it is "static funding." We generally do not view static funding as prudent because 
failing to make measureable progress on the unfunded liability, especially during periods of 
economic expansion, indicates poor plan management that increases the risk of higher costs 
during down markets. We view contributions that cover static funding plus 1/30th of the 
unfunded liability in the most recent annual contribution as a minimum amount of progress that 
governments should make toward full funding, without regard to an actuarial funding plan.

70



71



72



73



74



FY 2021 Adopted FY 2021 Revised Change
Undesignated Revenues

Secured Property Taxes 61,165,455 68,058,514 6,893,059
Regular Redemptions 534,511
Unsecured Property Taxes 2,250,000 3,000,000 750,000
Supplemental Taxes 1,260,000 2,000,000 740,000
Property Transfer Taxes 16,500,000 16,500,000 0
Sales Taxes 15,786,200 16,727,492 941,292
Soda Tax 970,794 970,794 0
Utility Users Taxes 12,750,000 12,750,000 0
Transient Occupancy Taxes(TOT)* 5,746,260 3,546,260 (2,200,000)
Business License Taxes** 14,284,192 14,284,192 0
Vehicle In Lieu Taxes 12,421,597 14,384,459 1,962,862
Other Taxes 922,048 1,456,560 534,512
Parking Fines 5,049,000 4,049,000 (1,000,000)
Moving Violations 190,000 190,000 0
Interest Income 2,851,200 4,051,200 1,200,000
Ambulance Fees 5,103,208 3,342,159 (1,761,049)
Franchise Fees 1,551,696 1,581,650 29,954
Indirect cost reimbursements 5,490,000 5,490,000 0
Transfers 17,274,293 17,274,293 0
Other Revenues 6,246,348 6,246,348 0
Total Undesignated Revenues $188,346,802 $195,902,922 $8,090,631

*TOT for Short-Term Rentals 676,260 476,260
**Business License Taxes for Cannabis Recreational 1,300,000 1,300,000

Designated Revenues
Prop. Transfer Taxes for capital improvements 0 0
Prop. Transfer Taxes-Measure P 4,747,414 6,247,414
Measure U1 for low income housing 2,700,000 2,700,000
Total Designated Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS $195,794,216 $204,850,336 $9,056,120

FY 2021 Revenue Comparison

75



Secured Property Tax (+$2,556,092 more than FY 2020 Actual). Increase 
projections by $6,893,062

76



Unsecured Property Tax (+$290,225 more than FY 2020 Actual). Increase 
projections by $750,000

77



Property Transfer Tax (-$4,377,730 less than FY 2020 Actual)

Measure P Property Transfer Tax (-$2,792,106 less than FY 2020 Actual). Increase 
projections by $1,500,000

Sales Tax (- $1,360,682 less than FY 2020 Actual). Increase projections by 
$941,292) 

78



Utility Users Taxes (- $22,506 less than FY 2020 Actual) 

Transient Occupancy Tax (-$3,398,448 less than FY 2020 Actual). 
Lowering projections by $2,000,000  

79



Short-Term Rentals (-$648,917 less than FY 2020 Actual). Lowering 
projections by $200,000

Business License Taxes (-$776,727 less than FY 2020 Actual)

Recreational Cannabis (-$347,216 less than FY 2020 Actual)

U1 Revenues (-$134,311 less than FY 2020 Actual)

Vehicle In Lieu Taxes (+$512,205 more than FY 2020 Actual). Increase 
projections by $1,962,862

80



Parking Fines (-$622,500 less than FY 2020 Actual). Lowering projections 
by $1,000,000

Ambulance Fees (-$978,596 less than FY 2020 Actual). Lowering projections by 
$1,761,049

81



Interest Income (-$392,470 less than FY 2020 Actual). Increase projections 
by $1,200,000 

Franchise Fees (-$51,385 less than FY 2020 Actual). Increasing projections by 
$29,954

82



Transfers (+$6,231,937 more than FY 2020 Actual) 

Other Revenues (+$1,136,544 more than FY 2020 Actual) 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



Homeless Services Panel of Experts

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

ACTION CALENDAR
October 29, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts

Submitted by: Katharine Gale, Chairperson

Subject: Recommendations for Allocation of FY19/20 Measure P Funds

RECOMMENDATION
Approve recommendations for the allocation of FY19/20 General Funds at least 
commensurate with resources accrued to date from the passage of Measure P. Refer to 
the City Manager to produce data regarding the percentage of those transported with 
County Emergency Mental Health Transport who are homeless, and other sources that 
could be used to cover this cost.

SUMMARY
The Homeless Services Panel of Experts recommends that the City allocate general 
funds to a variety of critical activities including permanent housing, shelter, supportive 
services and other program types to address the current crisis of homelessness in 
Berkeley. The recommended priority order, percentages, types of activities and 
subpopulation considerations are included as Attachment 1 to this report.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Recommendations covered by this report allocate general fund resources for homeless 
housing and services in an undetermined amount to be at least commensurate with 
those raised to date under the transfer tax authorized under Measure P (minus those 
previously allocated by Council).

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Homeless is increasing in the City of Berkeley and throughout the Bay Area. Between 
2017 and 2019 homelessness in Berkeley at a point-in-time has risen by 13%, affecting 
more than 1,100 people on any given night.  Recognizing the need for additional 
housing and services and for humane measures to address the impacts of 
homelessness, the Voters of Berkeley passed Measure P in November 2018 which 
collects a specified transfer tax with the intention to use these additional funds to 
address homelessness in the City of Berkeley.

Measure P established a Homeless Services Panel of Experts to advise the City 
Council. The Panel consists of nine members with a deep level of expertise in areas 
relevant to homelessness, including persons with extensive professional and/or lived 

Page 1 of 8

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
18a



Recommendations for Allocation of FY19/20 Measure P Funds ACTION CALENDAR
October 29, 2019

Page 2

experience with homelessness. The Panel began meeting in May 2019.  Katharine Gale 
and Yesica Prado are the elected chair and vice-chair of the Panel. 

Addressing homelessness is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing the City’s goal 
to create affordable housing and supportive services for our most vulnerable community 
members.

Process
This report provides the Panel’s first recommendations for initial investments from 
General Funds to increase and improve housing and services to address homelessness 
in Berkeley. In order to develop these recommendations, the Panel first adopted a 
Purpose Statement (attached). The Panel reviewed all of the referrals made to us since 
the Measure’s passage in light of our adopted statement. This included the funding 
requests and referrals included in the January 2019 Measure P Informational report to 
Council as well as additional referrals, formal and informal, sent to the Panel since that 
time. We also considered information we were presented by City staff regarding current 
City of Berkeley investments, local and regional strategies, the 2019 Point-in-Time 
Count, and the 1,000 Person Plan.  

A Mission and Budget Subcommittee of the Panel meet and categorized the referrals 
we received by areas of investment (permanent housing, shelter, etc.) and proposed 
initial percentages to each area, as well as a process to determine the final 
recommendations. The full Panel reviewed the investment areas, added additional 
activities/program types to the areas, prioritized the program types within each area, 
and made recommended adjustments to the percentages, resulting in the 
recommended allocations attached to this report. Our recommendation regarding 
shelter and temporary accommodations includes the potential to use funds to support 
sanctioned encampments if approved by a Council policy and we encourage the City to 
give consideration to this approach.

The Panel also adopted subpopulation priorities within the key investment areas of 
permanent housing subsidies, and flexible housing subsidies. These include 
establishing a $500,000 set-aside for permanent housing subsidies for homeless 
families with children. This also includes a recommended 20% set-aside for families and 
transition-age youth in flexible housing subsidies, using the McKinney-Vento (i.e. 
Berkeley Unified School Districts) definition of homelessness, though not limited to 
families with school-age children.

As stated above, the actual amount of funding to be allocated has yet to be determined. 
The agreed upon order of priority and percentages is included as Attachment 1. The 
Panels’ priorities within each area are expressed in the order of activities.  We 
recommend that higher ranked activities be given a greater priority for resources, but we 
recognize that some activities we have recommended may be funded using other 
resources at the City’s disposal.  Activities left out of our table, such as Public Works 

Page 2 of 8



Recommendations for Allocation of FY19/20 Measure P Funds ACTION CALENDAR
October 29, 2019

Page 3

street cleaning, and general street outreach, were not recommended for funding from 
Measure P at this time.

Objection to Full Funding for Emergency Mental Health Transport
The Panel notes that the amount available for us to allocate was reduced by nearly $1.5 
million in FY19/20 based on commitments recommended previously by the City 
Manager for City staff and for Mental Health Emergency Transport. We understand that 
FY19/20 funding is already committed but we wish to express our strong objection to 
the pre-allocation of $2.4 million in FY20/21 Measure P-generated funding to fully cover 
these transportation costs. Measure P was passed by the voters of Berkeley to address 
the crisis of homelessness; while some people who experience homelessness may 
require emergency mental health transportation, this service is not limited to people who 
are homeless and was not budgeted with consideration that most people who will be 
transported will be people who are housed. In addition, this service does not result in 
greater housing or shelter for people who are homeless and we believe is not consistent 
with the purpose of Measure P.  We recommend the Council refer to the City 
Manager to produce information regarding the percentage of those transported 
who are homeless and other potential sources to cover this expense.  We hope to 
make recommendations for next year’s investments with consideration to this.

Next Steps
The HSPE recognizes that it was established not only to make recommendations about 
investment amounts but also to advise on methods and practices. A companion letter 
will be sent to Council to accompany this report with additional recommendations and 
considerations for how to ensure Berkeley’s programming is consistent with best 
practices.

Future work of the Panel will include developing an Action Plan for the coming year, and 
coordinating with Measure O to plan for future developments. Future work may include 
recommendations regarding establishing a goal of ending family homelessness or other 
City-wide goals.

BACKGROUND
Measure P was passed by the voters of Berkeley in 2018.  The Homeless Services 
Panel of Experts began meeting in May of 2019. To guide our work, in August 2019 we 
have adopted a Statement of Purpose. This Statement is provided as Attachment 2 to 
this report and is a guide to the recommendations made in this Report.

At their September 4, 2019 regular meeting, the Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
took the following action regarding these recommendations:

Action: M/S/C Sutton/Trotz to adopt Budget A as amended:
(i) Re-prioritize item #2 (Permanent Housing) as item #1 (and vice-versa), and 

within the Permanent Housing category:
a. Replace “permanent supportive housing” with “permanent housing”; 

Page 3 of 8



Recommendations for Allocation of FY19/20 Measure P Funds ACTION CALENDAR
October 29, 2019

Page 4

b. Strike the language under “Additional considerations”; 
c. Add “establish a minimum set-aside of $500,000 for homeless families in 

this category”; Note that Transition-Age Youth should be included in 
funding for adults.

(ii) Remove the recommended dollar amounts in each funding category, replacing 
them with percentage allocations, and change the allocations to each 
category as follows:
a. #1 – Permanent Housing: 30%
b. #2--Shelter and Temporary Accommodations: 30%
c. #3--Immediate Street Conditions and Hygiene: 14%
d. #4--Supportive Services: 14%
e. #5--Short/Medium Term Housing Subsidies: 10%
f. #6--Infrastructure: 2%.

(iii) Within Category #2 (Shelter and Temporary Accommodations), 
a. Add “City should ensure there is a focus on families living on the street”;
b. Remove “Support sanctioned encampments” as a specific line-item, and 

instead add reference to sanctioned encampments as a possible modality 
in line-item #1 (Expand shelter capacity), with the language “if the City 
should adopt such a policy”; 

c. Add language in the report to reflect that City should study the potential for 
sanctioned encampments as a form of shelter expansion and if it adopts 
such a policy these funds could be used to support that modality.

(iv) Within Category #3 (Immediate Street Conditions and Hygiene):
a. Add “storage units” to the “lockers” item;
b. Add “including for encampments” to the “Toilets and Hygiene Stations” 

item.
(v) Within Category #5 (Short/Medium Term Housing Subsidies), remove the 

language on additional considerations and replace with:
a. Establish a 20% set-aside for families and youth (including transition-aged 

youth).
b. Use the McKinney-Vento definition of “homelessness” as an eligibility 

criterion, without limiting to BUSD-enrolled households to ensure coverage 
of families with children under school age.

Vote:  Ayes: Carrasco, cheema, Gale, Jordan, Metz, Patil, Prado, Sutton, Trotz.
Noes: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental costs or opportunities associated with these 
recommendations; the determination regarding how to invest in shelter expansion 
activities may require environmental consideration.

Page 4 of 8



Recommendations for Allocation of FY19/20 Measure P Funds ACTION CALENDAR
October 29, 2019

Page 5

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The exact amount of funds that will be generated by Measure P are unknown at this 
time, and additional State and local funds may become available to the City to cover 
similar cost areas to address homelessness as those recommended by the Panel. 
Thus, the Panel is recommending key categories for investment, relative priorities 
expressed as percentages, and priorities within each of these areas. City staff and 
Council are encouraged to uses these recommendations to determine the specific 
investments within each area. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The HSPE considered various options for allocating resources to families and Transition 
Age Youth (TAY) including allocating resources based on each population’s 
percentages in the Point in Time (PIT) count, establishing a specific priority for 
unsheltered families, and adopting a significant percentage of housing resources for 
families. The HSPE ultimately adopted and recommends a specific set-aside in the first 
allocation of at least $500,000 of funding for permanent housing for families and a 20% 
percent set-aside in flexible subsidies for families and transition age youth.

CITY MANAGER
See Companion Report.

CONTACT PERSON
Peter Radu, Homeless Services Coordinator and Secretary to the Homeless Services 
Panel of Experts, HHCS, (510) 981-5435.

Attachments: 
1: Recommendations for First Year Measure P Allocations - By Category and Activity
2: Homeless Services Panel of Experts Statement of Purpose

Page 5 of 8



ATTACHMENT 1:  
Recommendations for General Fund Allocations Associated with Measure P - By 
Category and Activity

Because the total amount of funding available is unknown, recommendations are based 
on a percentage of funding to each category. Within investment areas, activities are listed 
in the order they were prioritized and we generally recommend higher priority be given to 
these activities over those that are listed further down in higher priority categories. 
Additional considerations and recommendations include subpopulation priorities and 
service types considered within each activity.

Investment Area and Sub-
Category Activities listed in 
Priority Order 

Percent Additional Considerations/ 
Recommendations

1.  PERMANENT HOUSING

Permanent Housing Subsidies and 
Services

30% Establish a minimum set-aside of 
$500,000 for homeless families in this 
category.  Transition-age youth should be 
included in funding for Adults. 

2.  SHELTER & TEMPORARY 
ACCOMMODATIONS

1. Expand Shelter Capacity

2. Invest in improving existing 
shelter capacity

30% 1. Adding new sheltering capacity may 
include the development of dedicated 
RV parking, use of tiny houses, or 
other means to increase shelter 
capacity.  If the City should adopt a 
policy approving sanctioned 
encampments then this use would also 
be included. City should ensure there is 
a focus on meeting needs of any 
families living on the street.

2. Increase services and housing 
connections in existing shelters so that 
they are able to function as Navigation 
Centers.

3.  IMMEDIATE STREET 
CONDITIONS & HYGIENE

1. Toilets and Hygiene Stations, 
including for encampments

2. Lockers and Storage Units

14% Note: These funds were not recommended 
for general clean-up and other Public 
Works functions and should be spent on 
activities that directly benefit homeless 
people.

Page 6 of 8



Page 2

Investment Area and Sub-
Category Activities listed in 
Priority Order 

Percent Additional Considerations/ 
Recommendations

4. SUPPORTIVE SERVICES

1. Health Care services

2. Employment and Income 
Development Activities

3. Substance Use Treatment

14% 1. Health care services dedicated to 
people experiencing homelessness 
which may include street medicine.

2. Activities may include job development 
and support as well as benefits 
advocacy and other services to 
improve incomes.

3. Substance use treatment services 
dedicated for persons who are 
experiencing homelessness.

5.  FLEXIBLE HOUSING 
SUBSIDIES

Flexible housing subsidies may 
include prevention, diversion 
and/or rapid resolution support.

10% Establish a 20% set-aside for homeless 
families and transition-age youth, using 
the McKinney-Vento definition of 
homelessness. 

6.  INFRASTRUCTURE
1. Training  ~80%

2. Evaluation ~20%

  2% 1. Use resources in this category for 
training for Berkeley community-based 
organizations working with people who 
are homeless.

2. Use resources in this category to 
ensure that the experiences of service 
users are captured and considered in 
performance evaluation.

TOTAL 100%

Page 7 of 8



ATTACHMENT 2:
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Mission/Purpose Statement  
(adopted August 14, 2019)

The Voters of Berkeley passed Measure P to generate additional General Funds to use 
to address the crisis of homelessness.  The Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
created by the Measure was established to “make recommendations on how and to 
what extent the City should establish and/or fund programs to end or prevent 
homelessness in Berkeley and provide humane services and support.”

We understand the current crisis of homelessness requires investments in prevention, 
health services and permanent housing which we know to be the solution to 
homelessness, as well as in shelters, supports and other temporary measures that get 
people immediately out of the elements. We will seek to strike a balance between these 
needs in our recommendations. 

We will consider currently unmet needs, gaps and opportunities, best practices and 
currently available data on outcomes.  We will make recommendations for increased 
local investment, including program types, target populations and geographic areas as 
appropriate. We will seek to consider the best use of these investments in the context of 
other available Federal, State and local funding. In general, we will not make 
recommendations on the specific agencies to receive funding, nor run our own proposal 
process, recognizing this as a role for staff and the Council. We will request updates on 
the performance of Measure P investments and the homeless service system overall, 
including the experience of service users, and use this information to inform future 
recommendations and provide oversight.  

We recognize that homelessness is a regional issue and requires a regional approach, 
including recognizing that people from Berkeley may live in other places and remain 
connected to Berkeley services.

To ensure Measure P funding recommendations further efforts to create more housing 
for people experiencing homelessness in Berkeley, we will coordinate with the Measure 
O panel to ensure that very low cost housing is connected to services and operating 
support so that it can successfully targeted to people who are homeless.

We will meet as needed to fulfill this Mission, and to make recommendations to the City 
Council at least annually.

Page 8 of 8


	3-22-21HomelessPanelofExpertsAgenda - final
	MEETING AGENDA
	March 22, 2021 – 6:00 PM
	Commission Secretary:  Josh Jacobs (jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info; 510-225-8035)

	02-03-21HomelessServicesPanelMinutes-draft
	MEETING MINUTES

	HSPOE Periodic Report-FINAL DRAFT
	Memo from HSPOE with Notes from 09292020 meeting
	Unfunded Liability Obligations and Unfunded Infrastructure Needs
	2019-11-19 Item 18a Recommendations for Allocation (3)



